ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
February 22, 2005
3:47 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Gene Therriault, Chair
Senat or Thomas Wagoner, Vice Chair
Senat or Charlie Huggi ns

Senat or Bettye Davis

Senator Kim El ton

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 39
"An Act relating to ballot titles and propositions; and
providing for an effective date."

HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 95

"An Act relating to the collection of, and the use of reasonable
force to collect, a deoxyribonucleic acid sanple from persons
convicted of or adjudicated delinquent for certain crines.”

HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BILL NO. 104

"An Act relating to the crime of m srepresenting permanent fund
dividend eligibility; requiring the establishnment of a permanent
fund dividend fraud investigation unit in the Departnent of
Revenue; and providing for an effective date."

HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 39

SHORT TI TLE. BALLOT PROPOSI TI ONS AND TI TLES
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) ELTON

01/ 11/ 05 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/07/ 05

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- February 22, 2005



01/ 11/ 05 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

01/ 11/ 05 (S) STA, JUD
02/ 22/ 05 (S) STA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211
BILL: SB 95

SHORT TI TLE: COLLECTI ON OF DNA/ USE OF FORCE
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) BUNDE

02/ 07/ 05 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 07/ 05 (S) STA, JUD

02/ 22/ 05 (S) STA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

BILL: SB 104

SHORT TI TLE: PERMANENT FUND DI VI DEND FRAUD
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(S) SEEKI NS

02/ 14/ 05 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 14/ 05 (S) STA, JUD
02/ 22/ 05 (S) STA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

W TNESS REG STER

Jessi e Kiehl

Staff to Senator Kim Elton

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions on SB 39

Jeff Fel dman
No address provided
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 39

Joe Cel dhof, Attorney
Juneau, AK 99801
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 39

Annette Kreitzer

Chi ef of Staff

O fice of Lieutenant Governor Loren Lenan

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 39

Senat or Con Bunde

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: prine sponsor SB 95

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- February 22, 2005



Lauren W ckersham

Staff to Senator Bunde

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions on SB 95

| nvestigator Gffer

Al aska State Trooper,

Department of Public Safety

PO Box 111200

Juneau, AK 99811-1200

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 95

Dean Cuanel i

Chi ef Assistant Attorney Ceneral
Crimnal Division

Depart ment of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 95

PORTI A PARKER

Deputy Conm ssi oner

Department of Corrections

431 N. Franklin, Suite 400

Juneau, AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 95

SCOTT CAULDER
No address provided
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed concerns about SB 95

BRI AN HOVE

Staff to Senat or Ral ph Seekins

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced SB 104

SHARON BARTON, Director

Per manent Fund Di vi dend Di vi si on

Depart ment of Revenue

PO Box 110400

Juneau, AK 99811-0400

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions on SB 104

CRI S POAG
Assi stant Attorney General

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 22, 2005



Cvil Dvision

Depart ment of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 104

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR GENE THERRI AULT called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:47:44 PM He announced that
three bills were up for consideration and that he did not intend
to take final action on any of the neasures that day.

SB  39- BALLOT PROPOSI TI ONS AND TI TLES

CHAI R THERRI AULT announced SB 39, sponsored by Senator Elton, to
be the first order of business. He noted the blank commttee
substitute (CS) and asked the sponsor which version he would
speak to.

SENATOR KIM ELTON, prine sponsor, replied he would speak to the
blank CS and notioned to adopt \F version SB 39 as the working
docunent. There being no objection, it was so ordered.

3:49: 32 PM

Last year, he explained, nore tinme was spent talking about the
specific |anguage describing a few ballot initiatives than was
spent on the underlying policy. SB 39 is an effort to get beyond
that and de-politicize the process through the creation of a
five nenber advisory panel

The |ieutenant governor would appoint two proponents of the
initiative or referenda and two opponents. The |ieutenant
governor would also appoint a fifth and neutral nenber from a
slate that was prepared by the Chief Justice of the Suprene
Court. Wth help from state attorneys, the conmmttee would
prepare the inpartial ballot title and proposition. In addition,
tinmnelines would be established so that deadlines that are
inherent in any initiative process don't becone an issue

The constitution is clear that the I|ieutenant governor wll
prepare the ballot |anguage so nothing in SB 39 forces him or
her to use the |anguage the panel develops. It does, however

provide that if different |anguage is used he or she would

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- February 22, 2005



outline why the language is different in the panphlet that is
sent to all Al aska voters.

He stressed that the genesis of the bill goes back beyond the
previous election to when he was the chief policy advisor to
former Lieutenant Governor Terry MIller nore than two decades
ago.

| can tell you that the nost difficult issues that
were dealt with in that |ieutenant governor's office -
and | suspect in each of the subsequent |ieutenant
governor's office - is how you do the ballot |anguage
because the automatic assunption of voters is that if
the ballot |anguage is comng froman elected official
who is elected on a partisan basis - automatically
peopl e have filters that go up. Especially the people
who may be behind the initiatives - and it is very
difficult to get beyond this. This is a way, | think,
that helps |ieutenant governors because it can de-
politicize that ballot |anguage issue.

CHAI R THERRI AULT noted that the court likes to nmaintain a bright
line so he was curious whether any discussion had taken place
regarding the court participating in what could be the swng
vote on |anguage it mght ultinmately pass judgnent on.

SENATOR ELTON replied he hadn't had any direct contact, but the
nodel is used in other instances such as the Legislative Ethics
Commttee. Certainly the court wouldn't want to select a
proponent or an opponent, but he thought the court would want to
avoid "any suggestion of bias that would kick the work on
drafting ballot |anguage into their system"”

CHAI R THERRI AULT referenced the Legislative Ethics Commttee and
said the court has nmade it clear that it wouldn't act as a super
parlianmentarian and interject itself into the operation of a
separate branch of governnment. A better exanple, he suggested,
woul d be re-districting. Those plans always end up in the court
system he said.

SENATOR ELTON replied it's a close and interesting question and
he thought the court would see it as a balance. If suggesting a
slate of ©potential advi sory panel candi dates reduces the
possibility of the court ending up wth the ballot |[|anguage
issue in their laps, the court would probably view that effort
as a savings of time and litigation costs.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 22, 2005



He said he wanted to correct a part of the sponsor statenent
related to cost of printing |last year. Media reports indicated
the cost of ballot printing was about $300,000, but the costs
were actually in the nei ghborhood of $240,000 to $245, 000.

SENATOR THOVAS WAGONER said he wunderstood the intent, but it
cones down to the fact that the |lieutenant governor could ignore
statute and proceed with his or her own | anguage anyway.

SENATOR ELTON agreed the constitution, which grants fina
authority to the I|ieutenant governor, trunps statute. However,
SB 39 sets up a process to create ballot |anguage and in the

future he suspects lieutenant governors wll be thankful that
the process is not seen through a partisan filter. There's a
strong possibility that the |ieutenant governor will trunp the

| anguage devel oped by the advisory panel at some point in the
future, but that probably won't happen often.

3:58: 36 PM

SENATOR CHARLIE HUGE NS asked if it neans a separate conmttee
for each initiative.

SENATOR ELTON replied there would be potential for multiple
conmi ttees.

SENATOR HUGA NS suggested this could be an admnistrative
nightmare and that he's sure that Lieutenant Governor Lenan
| earned a great deal during this last election cycle. Sonetines
corrective action is nore evil than what transpired, he said

and any tine the court becones involved it opens Pandora's box.

SENATOR ELTON said his brief response is that there is certainly
an associated learning curve and nost elected officials learn

from experience. More than Ilikely the present Lieutenant
Governor Leman is nore sensitive to the issues than he nmay have
been two years ago, but future |ieutenant governors wll also be

faced with a | earning curve.

"The worst thing that could possibly happen is for argunents
about ballot |anguage to get into the judicial system That, |
think, is a bigger problem than having a judicial officer
appoint one of five people to try and prevent that." It
shouldn't be viewed as constraining the behavior of the
| i eut enant governor because the constitution doesn't allow that,
but this approach to ballot |anguage can constrain the behavior
of initiative sponsors. It would make it nore difficult for

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 22, 2005



initiative sponsors to go to court and argue about ballot
| anguage that was approved by a non-partisan and bal anced
conmittee.

SENATOR HUGGE NS conmented he isn't warm to the idea of
commttees | ooking after the |ieutenant governor.

CHAI R THERRI AULT read page 2, lines 5,6, and 7 and said it neans
the Iieutenant governor may choose to nake adjustnents that are
allowed by the statute. It doesn't nmean that he or she my
ignore the statute. He noted the |anguage appears on that page
as part of AS 15.45.180 then at the top of page 3 as part of AS
15.45. 410 and on the bottom of page 3 as part of AS 15.50.010.
He questioned why the language is repeated in statute three
tinmes.

4:03:12 PM

SENATOR ELTON replied he believes it was an effort to make the
different conponents of the election statutes reflect the sane
notion. He asked his staff to confirmthat.

JESSE KIEHL, staff to Senator Elton, elaborated explaining the
first reference anends the initiative laws, the second the
referendum laws and the third reference amends the |aws on
constitutional anmendnents.

4:05:12 PM
CHAI R THERRI AULT asked whet her he had anything el se to add.

MR, KIEHL replied Senator Elton addressed all the primary points
but a point to enphasize further is clear and early deadlines
for work done on ballot titles and propositions. "Wile the bil
is intended to reduce the likelihood of lawsuits, certainly if
sonmething should ... go to court, there is adequate tinme for the
courts to address the question.™

CHAI R THERRI AULT asked about the suggested date changes.

SENATOR ELTON said he would ask M. Keihl to explain that and
menbers could reference the docunent on deadlines found in the
packets.

MR. KIEHL explained the original version of the bill created

deadl i nes that counted backward 70 and 80 days from El ecti on Day
to give the Division of Elections time to print ballots even if

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- February 22, 2005



there were a court challenge. During review they found that
existing statute for constitutional anendnents says that wthin
30 days after a legislative session in which a constitutional
anendnent is proposed ends, or 30 days after a constitutional
convention in which an anmendnent s proposed ends, the
| i eut enant governor nust prepare the title. The CS says, "30
days after the legislature last had a crack at it, the commttee
must nmeet and do its work and the |ieutenant governor approve.”

The tinmeframe for referenda is shorter so the tineline for the
ballot title nust be shortened to get everything to the D vision
of Elections in tinme to print the ballot. That limt is not
| ater than 21 days after the date the petition is filed. |nstead
of the 10-day tinefrane the |ieutenant governor is given to nake
any necessary changes for initiatives and constitutional
anendnents, the lieutenant governor is given 5 days for
ref erenda. The reasoning is that when referenda can be voted on
in the sane year that the signature is filed, the tinmefrane is
tight.

4:09: 55 PM
CHAI R THERRI AULT noted a nunber of people wanted to testify.
SENATOR ELTON nentioned the two zero fiscal notes.

CHAI R THERRI AULT acknow edged the fiscal notes and called on M.
Fel dman from an off net site.

4:11:17 PM

JEFF FELDMAN advised he was part of the recent litigation
involving the ballot |anguage and when he first heard of SB 39
he wasn't sure whether it was a good fix to the problem
Utimately he cane to view the neasure as non-partisan
| egi sl ati on.

He made the point that this is a recurring issue in the state
and that a nunber of |ieutenant governors have been defendants
in lawsuits brought because of action they nay have taken.
Certainly, Lieutenant Governor Leman's situation |ast year was
not unique and nost |ieutenant governors have had to struggle
with this issue.

He suggested two issues were worth consideration. First, the

present system is expensive and isn't limted to reprinting
costs. Litigation expenses are |likely to be in the high six

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 22, 2005



figures. The second point is that the current system mnakes
everyone associated with the process | ook bad.

Ref erencing the coment nmade about not wanting a conmttee to
make decisions about ballot |anguage, he said that is the
current system The |I|ieutenant governor doesn't appoint the
committee; "ultimately five people wearing black robes got to
deci de what the | anguage had to be."

Al though conmittees don't nove as fast as the individual, they
do nmove nore efficiently and | ess expensively than the process
used last year, he asserted. This process would also give any
| i eut enant governor help and guidance and make it nore likely
that | anguage that is settled upon would be inpartial, accurate,
and the product of both sides of an issue. Currently, once the
| i eut enant governor decides on the |anguage, proponents of the
initiative have no opportunity for review ahead of tine and no
opportunity to communicate with the |ieutenant governor as to
whether they like or don't like it. This suggested fix is worth
serious consideration, he concl uded.

SENATOR WAGONER noted that |egislation passed |ast year relating
to the initiative process should slow the nunber of initiatives
going to ballot, but he didn't think this neasure would keep the
initiative process out of the court system "Wen you' ve got two
sides arguing the issue, | think you' re going to end in court 90
percent of the tinme anyway," he remarked.

4:18: 44 PM
CHAI R THERRI AULT asked Joe Gel dhof to cone forward.

JOE GELDHOF, Juneau attorney, said he was testifying on behalf
of hinself and that he does have sone initiative experience. He
urged nenbers to develop a CS because there are sone neaningfu

points that would be useful to the lieutenant governor in the
initiative process.

He found Lieutenant Governor Leman's office to be conpletely
professional when he dealt wth it on the <cruise ship
initiative. Nonetheless, providing both proponents and opponents
an opportunity to preview the |anguage to be selected, as
proposed in SB 39, could give the |lieutenant governor the
ability to receive feedback quickly and to gain a feel for how
the language mght be received. Oherwise you end up wth
| anguage that comes through the I|ieutenant governor's office,
but frequently from the attorney general's office and "It's

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 22, 2005



often cobbled together in a hasty fashion without full regard to
what's really going on."

Finally, he urged nenbers to consider a CS that has a short
revi ew process so an opponent and a proponent vet the |ieutenant
governor and the attorney general summary before the booklets
are printed and released to the public. That mght avoid the
tenptation to litigate after the booklets are collected and
provi de opportunity for a better end product.

4:22:38 PM

SENATOR HUGGE NS asserted that unfortunately, "ballot initiatives
all too often are hyperizing and polarizing by their very
nature."

MR. CELDHOFF replied he really isn't a fan of the initiative
process and he views initiatives as the result of |egislative
gridl ock.

SENATOR HUGGE NS suggested this could result in greater
protraction.

MR. GELDHOF replied it could happen that way but, "give the
| i eutenant governor at least a limted chance to have a little
input from the people out there hammering on it.... give the
| i eut enant governor a shot of what's right and wong with the
| anguage. "

4:25:40 PM

CHAIR THERRI AULT agreed that in the past people have gotten
thousands of signatures on Jlanguage to Jlaws that were
structurally flawed. Sonetinmes the petitioners knew it was
fl awed and suggested they would fix it after the fact. He said
it seens as though the argunent is centered nore on the | anguage
that describes the law than the |anguage that is proposed for
the statute books. Wien you look at the proposed sumary
statenent that isn't the lawitself, he said.

MR. GELDHOFF agreed then said that the public really has an
amazing capacity to know what's going on. The Legislature has an
obligation to make it as clear as possible and then let the
public do what they're going to do. "Let people like M. Feldnman
come up with a better work product.”

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- February 22, 2005



CHAI R THERRI AULT said he was thinking about the property tax
issue fromthree or four years ago. The proposed |aw was fl awed
and didn't work. You could argue about the summary statenent on
the booklet and you could argue about the sunmmary on the
ballots, but the process doesn't provide for a check on the
proposed law itself to make sure it works.

MR, CELDHOFF replied initiatives are just the direct enactnent
of legislation so the same standards should be used that you as
the presiding officer of a commttee would consi der.

CHAIR THERRI AULT said they don't always get it right as a
commttee, but they have the commttee process, Departnent of
Law attorneys, legislative attorneys, Mjjority nenbers, and
Mnority nenbers. Each provides a set of eyes comng from a
di fferent perspective and | ooking for m stakes. By contrast what
is approved for initiatives has frequently been reviewed from
just one perspective and the sunmary nmay not be accurate.

4:29: 55 PM

SENATOR ELTON said perhaps the commttee should consider a CS to
include the summary | anguage for petitions. Wth regard to the
property tax initiative, he said it wasn't an issue of what was
said on the summary or what woul d have appeared on the ballot,
but it could have becone an issue because there was a structural
flaw to the law they were proposing. A commttee could have
addressed the issue by saying, "This doesn't do what it says it
does. "

CHAI R THERRI AULT asked Annette Kreitzer to cone forward.

ANNI TTE KREI TZER, chief of staff for Lieutenant Governor Loren
Leman, said she would speak in generalities since she hadn't
seen the sponsor statenment or the proposed CS.

She said she distributed pages from Lieutenant Governor Leman's
web site titled "Understanding Initiatives" because it includes
tinmelines of action on initiatives. Furthernore:

Li eutenant Governor Leman believes the initiative
process is an inportant part of Alaska' s political
system It allows Alaskans direct access to witing
and approving certain |laws w thout going through the
| egi sl ative process.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- February 22, 2005



SB 39 isn't necessary. Any lieutenant governor wal ks a
fine line between proponents of an initiative and the
opponents. As far as nmy experience goes, Wwe've
received coments on both sides of alnost every
initiative. The lieutenant governor takes input from
many including the Departnent of Law. W don't operate
in a vacuum

Under SB 39, the lieutenant governor still can change
the commttee's recomendation and |'m sure, as others
have said before nme, that that's in the bill because
to do otherwwse would Ilikely render the bil

unconsti tuti onal .

M5. KREITZER took issue with M. Feldman's statenent that
opponents and proponents do not have an opportunity to coment.
The initiative he was referencing cane at the sane tine that
| egi sl ation was being passed so Lieutenant Governor Leman was
very involved. Wien he was asked about that |egislation he said
it was substantially simlar to the proposed initiative. Three
days prior to printing the special advance ballots the court
ruled that the initiative would have to go on the ballot.

In terms of timng she made the point that if you' re vul nerable
to a lawsuit at any point you wouldn't be able to neet the
tinelines set forth in the bill. "The bias is in the eye of the
behol der. Proponents don't think we're doing enough to advance
their initiative and opponents don't think we're doing enough to
outline perceived flaws in an initiative."

Current law allows judicial review and judicial review would
also be available wunder SB 39. The proposed five-nenber
committee wouldn't have fewer biases than an elected |ieutenant
governor and an appoi nted attorney general, she concl uded.

4:34:52 PM

CHAI R THERRI AULT referenced the fiscal notes and asked Senator
Elton who would pay the commttee expenses as far as travel and
per diem

SENATOR ELTON replied he anticipates sone travel costs because
it's likely that the commttee would have to neet face-to-face
at least initially. He suggested that little investnment up front
woul d save a | ot of noney |ater on.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- February 22, 2005



CHAI R THERRI AULT noted the fiscal notes from the Division of
El ections and the Departnent of Law and asked if he envisions
that the expenses would be covered from the |ieutenant
governor's budget.

SENATOR ELTON replied it could happen that way. During an
el ection cycle a lot of the lieutenant governor's staff tine is
used on issues such as ballot |anguage, tenporary hiring, and
voter panphlet contracting. He anticipates that it would be part
of the biannual cycle for budgeting for elections.

CHAI R THERRI AULT questioned whether they would have to plan for
addi ti onal costs.

SENATOR ELTON replied expenses would probably be slightly
hi gher. Expenses would depend on the nunmber of initiatives and
perhaps the volatility of some of the initiatives. In conclusion
he enphasized that it wll be easy to identify costs to
acconplish SB 39 but inpossible to identify the accrued savings.
There was no further testinony or questions.

CHAI R THERRI AULT announced he would hold SB 39 in committee.
4:38:14 PM

SB 95- COLLECTI ON_OF DNA/ USE OF FORCE

SENATOR GENE THERRI AULT announced SB 95 to be up for
consi deration. He asked Senator Bunde to introduce the bill

4:38: 24 PM

SENATOR CON BUNDE, prine sponsor, explained that he had the bil
drafted as a result of a conversation with the conm ssioner of
the Departnment of Public Safety. He |earned that people who are
required to submt to DNA testing may refuse to cooperate and
the authorities nay not force conpliance. Convicted people often
have quite a resune of another crines, he said, so nmatching DNA
can help solve other wunsolved crinmes. It's logical, he said,
that the state should be able to use reasonable force to collect
a DNA sanple if the convicted individual decides not to
cooperate. The procedure isn't invasive it's sinply using a
cotton swab on the cheek.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- February 22, 2005



SB 95 is an attenpt to clear the backlog of unsolved crinmes and
perhaps discourage sone people from commtting additiona
crimes.

CHAI R THERRI AULT asked Senator Bunde to discuss sone of the
backup material provided in the packets.

SENATOR BUNDE referenced the letter from the Anchorage Police
Departnent supporting SB 95 then said the other material 1is
general background and information on the effectiveness of using
DNA.

CHAIR THERRI AULT remarked the |anguage "forced collection”
sounds harsher than a cotton swab on the cheek. He asked which
ot her states have inplenented DNA coll ection | aws.

LAUREN W CKERSHAM staff to Senator Bunde, said she didn't know
which states use reasonable force to collect DNA but the
dat abase technol ogy is new and grow ng qui ckly.

CHAIR THERRI AULT said his staff found that the State of
Washi ngton uses simlar legislation and he was curious whether
the sponsor wrked wth the drafters to develop nodel
| egi sl ati on.

4:43: 54 PM

SENATOR BUNDE enphasized this is a relatively new concern and
some in law enforcement were surprised that a convicted
i ndi vidual could refuse to cooperate. The crine |lab and the
Departnent of Public Safety did provide input, he said.

CHAI R THERRI AULT asked whether this would apply only to people
who were incarcerated and not be retroactive.

SENATOR BUNDE replied he didn't intend it to be retroactive.

MS. W CKERSHAM added the bill doesn't address whom it addresses
how to collect for those who refuse.

SENATOR CHARLI E HUGE NS suggested the sponsor narrow the scope
of who may col |l ect a DNA sanpl e.

SENATOR BUNDE replied the bill was purposefully drafted to cast
a broad net.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- February 22, 2005



SENATOR KIN ELTON questioned whether the state mght incur
liability or obligation once they have collected the DNA sanple.
Once the DNA is collected does it go into a databank that is
secure and inviolate, he asked.

SENATOR BUNDE replied his understanding is that DNA is only
collected for identification purposes and testing for extensive
genetic markers wouldn't occur. He assured nenbers the
information is kept secure.

SENATOR ELTON asked what happens to sanples collected from
juvenil e of fenders.

SENATOR BUNDE replied his staff confirmed that privacy would be
mai nt ai ned.

4:49:48 PM

SENATOR ELTON said he assumed that nost felonies were prosecuted
by the state and he wondered which nunicipalities prosecute
f el oni es.

SENATOR BUNDE replied none conme to mnd, but it is in keeping
with the casts a wide net theory.

CHAI R THERRI AULT asked M. G ffer to give his testinony.

MR G FFER, Alaska State Trooper investigator, spoke via
tel econference to say that this bill would be inportant in
working old cases. Taking a swab is very non-intrusive and no
one should get hurt in the process.

CHAI R THERRI AULT asked Dean Cuaneli to give testinony.
4:54: 33 PM

DEAN GUANELI, chief assistant attorney general, Departnent of
Law, expressed support for the bill for the reasons stated by
Senat or Bunde and Investigator Gfford. DNA testing has proven
to be nost effective in solving crines, convicting the guilty,
and clearing the innocent. SB 95 nakes it clear that sanples nay
be collected from nunicipal offenders who are convicted of
assault. The clarification is good because research shows that
collecting DNA sanples from m sdeneanor offenders solves a
nunber of serious offenses.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -15- February 22, 2005



He enphasized that collecting DNA sanples by neans of swabbing
the inside of the cheek isn't an intrusive procedure and that
whether force is used or not is entirely within the person's
control. Mbst people choose to cooperate, but sone people who
are under state supervision elect to buck the system at every
opportunity. He suggested that nost of those who refuse to
cooperate would change their mnd if they were infornmed that the
| aw aut hori zes force.

Technol ogy is advancing quickly and snmaller sanples are needed

to conduct DNA testing. In fact, the oil in a fingerprint is
getting to be enough to run a DNA test, he said. However,
because prisoner litigation is and will continue to be an issue,

he suggested that an appropriate immunity clause against
prisoner lawsuits is needed.

SENATOR KIM ELTON said he assunes that nunicipalities often
prosecut e m sdeneanor assault crines.

MR GUANELI said that is correct.

SENATOR ELTON asked where the cutoff point mght occur and
guestioned whether a DNA sanple mght be collected if neighbors
got into a scuffle.

5:01: 00 PM

MR. GUANELI replied current law requires DNA sanples to be
collected from anyone convicted of a crine against a person.
M sdenmeanor assault typically occurs in donestic situations, but
it could happen in the situation posited and that would be a
crime agai nst a person.

SENATOR ELTON asked for confirmation that the intent is not to
go to lower |evel crines.

MR. GUANELI said that is not the intent; the intent is for nore
i nclusion. Under current |aw m sdeneanor assaults prosecuted by
a nunicipality aren't covered so one of the things SB 95 does is
i ncl ude those and nmake the systemtotally conprehensive.

CHAI R THERRI AULT summarized that the expansion is the sanme type
of crinme prosecuted by another jurisdiction.

MR. GUANELI agreed.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- February 22, 2005



CHAIR THERRI AULT asked what happens to DNA data that 1is
coll ected from m nors once they becone adults.

MR. GUANELI replied juvenile fingerprint information is retained
in juvenile justice systenms and he thought DNA identification
was retained as well. They are sinply identification tools; the
DNA nmarkers checked in an identification system are referred to
as "junk DNA" in the scientific community and provide no usefu
information other than identification. Many parts of the DNA
system disclose nothing other than identity and that's what's
saved and anal yzed, he said.

SENATOR ELTON nmde the point that there's nothing in |law that
precludes the state from analyzing the DNA for markers that
woul d relate to nedical or other genetic conditions.

MR. GUANELI replied msuse of DNA information becane a crine
under previous |legislation, but he'd have to review the statutes
to determne whether the state is authorized to run tests for
information other than identification.

CHAI R THERRI AULT asked whether it was Senator A son's bill that
touched on penalties for inproper use and/or distribution of DNA
i nformati on.

SENATOR ELTON recalled insurance conpanies and other interests
were at issue.

SENATOR BUNDE pointed out that SB 95 doesn't expand the tests
for DNA it sinply addresses collection.

5:05:51 PM

CHAI R THERRI AULT read the following fromthe State of |daho and
asked whet her Al aska has a sim |l ar requirenent.

When the state accepts an offender from another state
under any interstate conpact, or any other reciprocal
agreenent with any county, state or federal agency, or
any other provision of |aw whether or not the offender
is confined or released the acceptance is conditional
on the offender providing a DNA sanple and thunbprint
inpression if the offender was convicted of an offense
that would qualify as a crinme described in Section 19.

MR. GUANELI expl ained that registered sex offenders are required
to give a DNA sanple whether they're convicted in Al aska or

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- February 22, 2005



el sewhere, but non sex offenders who cone in wunder the
interstate process aren't required to do so. There are two ways
to address that, he said. Although he'd have to check with the
interstate supervision process, his first suggestion is for the
Department of Corrections to adopt an admnistrative policy
stating they won't accept a prisoner under interstate
supervision without taking a DNA sanple. Another way to address
the issue would be to enact a statute to require collection. The
|l atter would require drafting changes, but it is a possibility.

CHAI R THERRI AULT asked Portia Parker to cone forward.
5:08: 15 PM

PORTI A PARKER, deputy conm ssioner, Departnent of Corrections,
t hanked Senator Bunde for introducing the legislation and
expressed departnent al support for the bill. General ly
corrections officials don't have difficulty collecting DNA
sanples from offenders, but just knowing that reasonable force
could be wused would be very helpful. The Departnent of
Corrections also supports the bill as a way to close other cases
using DNA. This is a real need for law enforcenent and for
victinms and for public safety, she said.

The collection process and the policies and procedures the
Department of Corrections and the Departnment of Public Safety
establ i shed cooperatively when DNA sanples were first collected
is working fairly well, she reported, but "this would be a
definite to the departnent in fulfilling that statutory
obl i gation.™

CHAIR THERRI AULT asked her to address the interstate conpact
i ssue.

MS. PARKER said she hadn't contacted the conpact adm nistrator,
but she thought the department would support that if it didn't
interfere with the interstate conpact rules wth other states.
"Although if other states are requiring that of offenders going
into their state, we probably won't have a problem requiring
that." It certainly wouldn't be a problem if the requirenent
were in statute, she said

5:10: 56 PM
CHAI R THERRI AULT questioned why the state would swap prisoners

and asked her to elaborate on what actually happens under the
conpact.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- February 22, 2005



M5. PARKER expl ained that this involves a probationer or parolee
in another state who wants to nove to Alaska and typically it's
an Alaskan who wants to return hone. Likew se, Alaska has
of fenders from outside the state who want to return honme once
they are out of prison and on probation or parole. A nechanism
is established whereby every state participating in the conpact
must abide by conpact rules. Although there are exceptions,
"They pretty nuch have to take ours who want to go there and we
have to take theirs who want to conme here so there is that
novenent." GCenerally it's a good process, she said, because
they're going where they have famly support, or a job, or a
school opportunity.

CHAI R THERRI AULT asked Senator Bunde whether he would object to
i ncluding | anguage to nake it clear that if a convicted of fender
were to cone to Alaska from another jurisdiction, they would
have to abide by the sanme rules as people convicted in Al aska.

SENATOR BUNDE said he woul dn't object; it seens |ogical.

SENATOR THOVAS WAGONER questioned how many people nove in and
out of the state under the conpact.

5:12:42 PM

M5. PARKER replied she could get the information, but |ast year
roughly the same nunber left the state under the conpact as
returned hone.

SENATOR WAGONER asked if his assunption is correct that the
receiving parole officer is responsible for oversight.

MS. PARKER replied that's the case since the conpact adopted new
rules in August 2004. Probation or parole violations here are
subject to Al aska conditions and consequences. The sane applies
to offenders sent out of state; they nust conply wth the
conditions in the jurisdiction in which they reside.

CHAI R THERRI AULT referenced page 1, lines 6 and 7 and questi oned
whet her we currently collect blood sanples or just rely on the
oral swab.

MB. PARKER replied the oral swab is used.

CHAIR THERRI AULT referenced the suggested |anguage "may use
reasonabl e force to collect” and questioned whether it should be

SENATE STA COW TTEE -19- February 22, 2005



expanded to say, "use such neans as are reasonably necessary to
collect™.

M5. PARKER responded the departnent had no opinion on that.

SCOIT CAULDER testified via tel econference and expressed concern

with the applicability of the bill because it appears to address
an overly broad range of things. Another issue is that although
the bill targets notorious crimnals, anybody else mght be

eligible. He questioned what m ght be considered reasonabl e when
"reasonable force" may be wused. This would be particularly
i nportant when you're tal king about juveniles, he said.

What this boils down to is "The individual has the choice, but
their choice is no choice and this is our way to get those
peopl e who are bucking the system" He asked the commttee to
consi der whether that foundation is a good reason for a | aw even
though it mght be a good tool in the tool box.

5:20: 30 PM

CHAI R THERRI AULT asked M. GCuaneli what standard the court would
allow in determining what is reasonable and if wunreasonable
force were used, whether the sanple would be invalid.

MR. GUANELI said his view is that if wunreasonable force were
used both the state and the officer would be subject to
liability, but the sanple wouldn't be jeopardized. In terns of
what is reasonable, it's the sane as with any negligence action.
The standard would be what a reasonable officer would do under
the circunstances and an expert would validate the action if
litigation were involved. "It's difficult to envision all the
circunstances that would face an officer who is dealing with a
recalcitrant inmate so the word reasonabl e was chosen. The whol e
concept of reasonableness is reflected throughout the Al aska
statutes - throughout our constitution.”

SENATOR ELTON pointed out that inserting the |anguage "in this
state” in tw places is a limting elenent and that |anguage
seens to apply to felonies under AS 11 or AS 28.35. Then the
| anguage, "or a law or an ordinance" is used. Because the word
"or" is used, he wondered whether "in this state” applies to the
state statutes but not to an ordinance or |aw el sewhere.

MR. GUANELI said the qualifier "in this state" would nean

Al aska, Al aska statutes, or Al aska nunicipal statutes. If there
were going to be a provision that talks about interstate

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 20- February 22, 2005



probation supervision, you'd have to add a nunber 6 to the
cl asses of people from whom sanpl es woul d be taken, he said. The
bill was drafted that way so it would include nunicipa
of fences. Standard |anguage used throughout the statutes is "a
| aw or ordinance with elenents simlar to a crine". That raises
t he question of whether people comng to Al aska who have al ready
served their tinme would have to submt a sanple. Using the
| anguage, "in this state" would exclude those people from the
reach of this statute, he said.

SENATOR ELTON asked if his reading is that using "or" doesn't
interrupt the predicate "in this state".

MR, GUANELI said it doesn't interrupt.

CHAI R THERRI AULT announced they would work with the sponsor and
| ook at the interstate conpact issue before hearing the bil
again.

5:25:32 PM

SENATOR BUNDE summarized that people who are investigated for
m nor crinmes frequently have a substantial crimnal record so he
would argue for including the broader definition of crines
agai nst people and that collecting a DNA sanple is the 21st
century fingerprint.

SB 95 was held in comittee.

5:26:29 PM

SB 104- PERVANENT FUND DI VI DEND FRAUD

CHAIR CGENE THERRI AULT announced SB 104 to be up for
consi deration and asked M. Hove to cone forward.

5:27:03 PM

BRIAN HOVE, staff to Senator Ralph Seekins, paraphrased the
sponsor st atenent.

SB 104 seeks to strengthen the Departnent of Revenue's
ability to investigate fraud associated with making a
false application for a permanent fund dividend.
Furthernore, subm ssion of a fraudul ent permanent fund
di vi dend application woul d become a class C fel ony.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -21- February 22, 2005



5:29:

In 2004 the Departnment of Revenue (DOR) exam ned over
1,600 fraud tips and audited over 1,700 pernmanent fund
dividend (PFD) appl i cations suspected  of bei ng
fraudulent. This resulted in $1.4 mllion in denied or
assessed di vi dends (1,500 + applications).
Furthernore, there were three federal indictnents and
one conviction for crimes involving PFD fraud.

The nost common PFD fraud of fense invol ves persons who
forge the signature of another on the application (or
related docunents) wth the intent of receiving a
dividend to which they are not entitled. It's
inportant to note that the bill is not intended to
capture, for exanple, cases where husbands or w ves
sign for each other. However, the provisions of this
| egi slation would apply in cases where the individual
is attenpting to steal from another person or fromthe
state.

Current law (AS 11.46.510) describes three separate
degrees of forgery - the two nost serious offenses are
puni shable as class B and C felonies, but are limted
to cases involving various types of fi nanci al
instrunments such as currency, securities, deeds of
trust, etc.

Forgery in the third degree covers instances where a
person intentionally mkes a false statenent on a
witten instrument (such as a PFD application).
However, this offense is punishable as a class A
m sdeneanor only. The DOR proposal to elevate PFD
fraud froma sinple m sdeneanor to a class C felony is
expected to provide a nore effective deterrent for
this type of theft.

Furthernore, SB 104 aids in identifying and curing
i nstances  of per manent fund dividend fraud by
codifying in statute a fraud investigation unit within
the Departnent of Revenue. This unit wll assist the
Department of Law in detecting and investigating
i nstances of PFD fraud.

28 PM

CHAI R THERRI AULT referenced the | anguage on page 1,

says,

“circunmstances not proscribed under AS 11.56.225"

line 7 that

and

SENATE STA COW TTEE -22- February 22, 2005



noted that it's the new section proposed in Section 2. He then
asked whether his interpretation was correct that Section 1
exenpts msrepresenting the permanent fund eligibility, but it's
put back in through a new section of statute witten to dea
with it specifically.

MR. HOVE suggested Sharon Barton answer the question.
5:30: 26 PM

CHAI R THERRI AULT read | anguage on page 2, lines 6 through 8 and
noted that it points back to Section 1. He asked for an
expl anati on because it seens circul ar.

SHARON BARTQN, director, Permanent Fund D vidend D vision, said
the explanation should cone from the legislative drafter. 1In
reading it she cane to the sanme conclusion decided it was
witten that way to make it clear that violations pertaining to
PFDs woul d be dealt with under AS 11.56.225 and others would be
dealt with under AS 11.56. 210.

CHAI R THERRI AULT asked if that includes all other falsification.
MS. BARTON said un-sworn falsification.

CHAIR THERRI AULT asked if this is specific and separate for
PFDs.

M5. BARTONS said that's correct.

CHAI R THERRI AULT said he didn't understand why | anguage on page
2, line 7 refers back to AS 11.56.210 so his staff would consult
the drafters before final action was taken.

MS. BARTON referenced |anguage on page 2 and remarked it could
be stated nore elegantly by sinply saying, "violates AS
11.56.210 and the statenent is in an application for a pernmanent
fund divi dend".

CHAI R THERRI AULT suggested the drafters m ght not have wanted to
repeat the factors that go into a AS 11.56.210 violation so they
refer to the criteria, but say that prosecution would be under a
new section of |aw

M5. BARTON said she al so thought that was the intent.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -23- February 22, 2005



MR. HOVE said they wanted to introduce the bill that day then
return with a commttee substitute (CS) at a subsequent hearing.

M5. BARTON pointed to Section 2, paragraph (3), and said line 10
would read nore clearly if it said, "a public enployee with the
intent to mslead that public enployee about a person's
eligibility" but it wouldn't change the intent of the statenent.

MR HOVE restated his desire to return with a CS or several
anendnent s.

5:34:39 PM
SENATOR ELTON commented if this bill passes and PFD fraud is
noved into AS 11, and SB 95 passes as well, people convicted of

PFD fraud would be required to submt to a DNA swab. He wasn't
commenting on whether that would be bad, but that's what would
happen.

CHAIR THERRI AULT replied "You had the limting crimes against
the person in [SB 95]."

SENATOR ELTON read, "any crime covered in AS 11 or against a
person or a felony under AS 11" so this would be a felony under
AS 11.

CHAI R THERRI AULT said he would | ook into that.
5:35:35 PM

CHAIR THERRI AULT asked M. Poag whether the conmttee had
di scussed anything that he m ght want to clarify.

5:35:51 PM

CRIS POAG civil division Departnment of Law, said although he
isn"t in the crimnal division he helped Director Barton draft
simlar legislation. Definitely, he said, paragraph (2) could be
cleared up using the language Director Barton suggested and he
agreed with her recommendation for changing the |anguage in
par agraph (3) as well.

He suggested they consult M. Guaneli as to whether the bill
woul d trigger a requirenment for DNA testing. He didn't know what
triggers the testing requirenent, but if the trigger were a
felony conviction then this bill would trigger that requirenent.
Furthernore, "If felonies are the trigger, the behavior that is

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 24- February 22, 2005



exhibited in these types of offenses is very consistent wth
other felony Ilevel behavior.” M srepresenting permanent fund
eligibility is very simlar to other felony offenses such as
forgery, perjury, and theft in the second degree. Therefore, you
don't have to be concerned that this is treated as a felony and
that a DNA sanple woul d be required.

PFD fraud doesn't need to be treated as a felony, it could be
treated as a m sdeneanor, but the Departnment of Revenue (DOR) is
very vul nerable to permanent fund fraud because this crine isn't
reported. It's left entirely to the DOR to determne who is
fraudul ently applying for and obtaining PFDs, which nakes them a
bit nmore vul nerable than the typical victim

The Departnment of Revenue isn't the true victimin these cases,
he stressed, it's all Alaskans; every PFD is reduced by the
nunber of fraudulent applications that are accepted each year.
It's expensive and tinme consumng for the permanent fund fraud
unit to ferret out these types of events, investigate them and
pursue a prosecution. That's why we think it's appropriate, but
not necessary to raise this to a felony level crine, he
concl uded.

5:38:32 PM

CHAIR THERRI AULT remarked he didn't necessarily agree that
nobody reports PFD crinmes because 1,600 fraud tips were reported
through the fraud tip line.

MR. POAG agreed the fraud tip line has proven to be very
effective and the tips have generally been accurate. However,
absent notive or incentive finding fraud is a difficult task
when 635,000 applications conme in every year. Raising public
awar eness and pursuing the crine as a felony may have a strong
deterrent effect, he suggested.

CHAI R THERRI AULT asked whether nost of the people using the
fraud line were acting as good Sanmaritans or were nobst on a
vendetta agai nst their neighbor.

MR. POAG said it's his understanding the axe to grind conponent
is often the catal yst but there are good Samaritans as well.

SENATOR BETTYE DAVI S asked whether the fraud unit has access to
f ederal records.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -25- February 22, 2005



MR. POAG replied they don't and he assunmed she was referring to
the National Crime Information Center (NCIC). That, he said, is
one of the collateral consequences and reasons for this
| egi sl ati on.

5:41: 04 PM
SENATOR DAVI S asked where that is referenced in the bill

MR. POAG acknow edged there is no reference. The Permanent Fund
Di vision would have to nake an application to the Departnent of
Public Safety and the application would be forwarded to the NCIC
for review to determ ne whether crimnal justice agency work was
bei ng conducted for crimnal purposes. It's a federal decision
rather than a state decision, he said.

CHAIR THERRI AULT comrented he renenbers overhearing soneone
announce that "My husband and | are waiting for our dividends
and then we're out of here [for good]." Wsn't that person
comm tting fraud, he asked.

MR POAG said it depends on whether they qualify for an
al | owabl e absence, but it sounds as though they didn't intend to
return and if that had been reported, soneone would have
foll owed up on the tip.

SENATOR ELTON said he wuld Iike to receive follow up
information to show a correl ati on because he has always assuned
that a person who is disingenuous on a FPD application isn't the
type to conmt a violent crine where DNA evidence m ght be left.

MR POAG said he would find out what triggers a DNA test
requirenent.

SENATOR ELTON said what he's really interested in is finding out
whether there is a correlation between this kind of felony and

felonies that are crinmes against a person where |aw enforcenent
may coll ect DNA evi dence.

MR, POAG clarified he was referring to the distinction between
crines agai nst persons and crinmes agai nst property.

SENATOR ELTON repeated he was interested in the data.

CHAI R THERRI AULT asked M. Poag to provide the information to
the conmttee and announced he would hold SB 104 in conmttee.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 26- February 22, 2005



5:43: 29 PM

CHAIR THERRI AULT referenced EO 104 and announced he would
introduce legislation under the Senate State Affairs Conmmttee
to deal wth the separation of +the Legislature from the
Adm nistration as it relates to the TIC

There being no further business to conme before the conmttee,
Chair Therriault adjourned the neeting at 5:43:54 PM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -27- February 22, 2005



